
  Directors 
 Mike Duran, President 
 William Teague, Vice President 
 Dennis Coleman, Secretary 
 Debra Canero, Director 
 Scott Sear, Director 
  General Manager 
 Beverli A. Marshall 
                                                                                                                  

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
  Tuesday, October 22, 2019, 1:00 p.m. 
 

AGENDA 
 
VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT BOARD ROOM RESOLUTION NO. 2019-1123 
45-500 VAN BUREN STREET ORDINANCE NO. 2019-120 
INDIO, CA 92201  MINUTE ORDER NO. 2019-2950 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
   

a. Roll Call 
 

b. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT 
This is the time set aside for public comment on any item not appearing on the agenda.  
Please notify the Secretary in advance of the meeting if you wish to speak on a non-
hearing item. 

 
3. CONSENT CALENDAR     
Consent calendar items are expected to be routine and noncontroversial, to be acted 
upon by the Board of Directors at one time, without discussion. If any Board member 
requests that an item be removed from the consent calendar, it will be removed so that 
it may be acted upon separately. 
  

a. Approval of the October 8, 2019 Regular Meeting Minutes (Attachment) 
 
b. Approval of Expenditures for October 3, 2019, to October 16, 2019 

(Attachment) 
 
c. Approval of Summary of Cash and Investments for September 2019 

(Attachment) 
 
d. Adopt Resolution 2019-1123 Establishing Designation of Valley Sanitary 

District’s Authorized Agents – CalOES Form 130 (Attachment) 
 
e. Designate Identified Items as Surplus Equipment and Authority Disposition as 

Appropriate (Attachment) 



Agenda October 22, 2019 Page 2 
                                                                              

 
f. Cancel Board Meeting Scheduled for Tuesday, November 26, 2019 Due to the 

Thanksgiving Holiday (Attachment) 
 
MINUTE ORDER NO.  
 

4. NON-HEARING ITEMS 
 
a. Authorize the Purchase of a Ford F750 Dump Truck from Fiesta Ford in an 

Amount Not to Exceed $92,845 (Attachment) 
 
MINUTE ORDER NO. 
 
b. Authorize the Purchase of a Ford F450 Flatbed Truck from Fiesta Ford in an 

Amount Not to Exceed $61,673 (Attachment) 
 
MINUTE ORDER NO. 
 
c. Adopt Resolution 2019-1124 Indicating Intent to Convert from At-Large to By-

Ward Election System (Attachment) 
 

MINUTE ORDER NO. 
 
d. Staff Notes (Attachment) 
 

5. DIRECTOR’S ITEMS 
Director’s items not listed are for discussion only; no action will be taken without an 
urgency vote pursuant to State law. 
 
6. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 

a.  Combined Monthly Account Summary for September 2019 (Attachment) 
 
b.  Monthly Income Summary for September 2019 (Attachment)  

 
7. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Adjourn in remembrance of Wilma Jean Hamel, grandmother of Ian Wilson, Chief 
Plant Operator 
 

Pursuant to the Brown Act, items may not be added to this agenda unless the Secretary 
to the Board has at least 72 hours advance notice prior to the time and date posted on 
this notice. 
 

POSTED October 17, 2019 

Holly Gould 

Holly Gould, Clerk of the Board 
Valley Sanitary District   
    



Agenda October 22, 2019 Page 3 
                                                                              
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, access to the Board Room and 
Public Restrooms has been made. If you need special assistance to participate in this 
meeting, please contact Valley Sanitary District (760) 235-5400. Notification 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA TITLE II). All public records 
related to open session items contained on this Agenda are available upon request at 
the Administrative Office of Valley Sanitary District located at 45-500 Van Buren Street, 
Indio, CA 92201. Copies of public records are subject to fees and charges for 
reproduction. 



UNOFFICAL UNTIL APPROVED 
 VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 

MINUTES OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
October 8, 2019 

A regular Board Meeting of the Governing Board of Valley Sanitary District (VSD) was held at the 
District offices, 45-500 Van Buren Street, Indio, California, on Tuesday, October 8, 2019. 

1. CALL TO ORDER

President Mike Duran called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.

a. Roll Call

Directors Present: Mike Duran, William Teague, Dennis Coleman, Debra Canero and
 Scott Sear 

Staff Present: Beverli A. Marshall, General Manager, Holly Gould, Ron Buchwald, 
Joanne Padgham, Ian Wilson 

Guests: Craig Hayes, Best Best & Krieger 

b. Pledge of Allegiance

2. PUBLIC COMMENT
This is the time set aside for public comment on any item not appearing on the agenda.  Please
notify the Secretary in advance of the meeting if you wish to speak on a non-hearing item.
______________________________________________________________________________
None.

3. CONSENT CALENDAR

a. Consideration of the September 24, 2019 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

b. Approval of Expenditures for September 19, 2019 to October 2, 2019
______________________________________________________________________________ 

ACTION TAKEN: 
MOTION: Secretary Coleman made a motion to approve the consent calendar as 

presented.  Vice President Teague seconded the motion.  Motion carried by 
the following vote: 5 ayes 

MINUTE ORDER NO.  2019-2948 

4. NON-HEARING ITEMS

f. Staff Update
______________________________________________________________________________ 
It was requested that item 4f be moved up on the agenda to accommodate the staff’s time. 

Item 3a

Back to Home



______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Board Minutes October 8, 2019                                                    2                                         Approved:  

Ian Wilson, Plant Operations Manager, gave an update of the treatment and maintenance 
departments. He stated that efforts to minimize the ammonia content are proving successful. He 
explained that they are using the plant’s own biology to minimize the ammonia content by adjusting 
the MCRT (Mean Cell Retention Time). The secondary clarifier #1 is being taken offline due to 
damage to the coating. Secondary clarifier #2 will be put online while the coating is repaired. Staff 
is also performing maintenance on the gas compressor that feeds gas to the boiler system to help 
maintain the temperature in the digester during the cooler months. Staff is also working with Trimax 
on the Influent PLC replacement and will be starting the floating dredge pipe project soon. Ian 
stated that the NPDES permit renewal has been submitted and stated that having a consultant 
help in the renewal process has been a great asset. Ian has applied for several awards for the 
upcoming CORBS Awards Dinner including Operator of the Year, Laboratory Person of the Year, 
and Plant of the Year. 

Joanne Padgham, Administration and Finance Manager, gave an update on the administration 
department. She stated that the District’s audit is complete, and the auditors will be issuing an 
unqualified opinion. Staff has been working on the CAFR (Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report) for submittal. A dedication has been included in the CAFR in honor of Merritt Wiseman. 
Staff has been working together with Caselle on the implantation of the new accounting and 
permitting system. It is due to go live next year. The annual and quarterly billings have gone out 
and the tax roll submission is complete.  The District has hired three new employees recently, one 
laboratory technician and two collection system maintenance technicians. 

Ron Buchwald, Engineering Services Manager, reported that the Downtown Rehabilitation Project 
is moving forward. Staff is putting together a project of sewer lining of mains and manholes as a 
way of being less inconvenient to the public. They are also working on a design packet to go out 
for bid to CCTV the larger sewer mains that cannot be done inhouse. Harris and Associates will be 
providing an update in the next few months. The Westward Ho Sewer Siphon Repair is in Carollo’s 
hands and they are moving forward with the scour analysis. The Arc Flash Study is complete, and 
staff has received the final report. Two-thirds of the study’s recommendations can be done inhouse 
but some of the larger items will have to be contracted out. Staff has been working very hard on 
the Asset Management Program for the Treatment Plant. The walk of the plant is complete, and all 
items have been input into a spreadsheet that will be sent to Carollo for review. Ron stated that the 
influent pump station is probably the most critical repair now and staff is working with Stantec on a 
design-build project. 

Ms. Marshall reported to the Board the dates for the Strategic Planning workshops are November 
8, 2019 (8 hours) and December 4, 2019 (4 hours). She stated that these will be held offsite, and 
she will do a press release for the public. The District has submitted for Transparency Certification 
from the Special District Leadership Foundation. Ms. Marshall has emailed the Directors the 
Staffing Analysis that she will bring forward at a future meeting. She informed the Board that she 
has been updating the District’s Facebook page. Ms. Marshall has been in contact with Linda York 
at the Wild Bird Center to partner on some outreach projects. She also met with Coachella Valley 
Waterkeeper, a new organization focusing on outreach and education for elementary, middle, and 
high school students. President Duran stated that he would like them to attend a meeting and give 
a presentation. Ms. Marshall informed the Board that the EVRA meeting is scheduled for Monday, 
October 28, 2019 at 3:00 p.m.  



______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Board Minutes October 8, 2019                                                    3                                         Approved:  

a. Authorize District Issued Cell Phone for Directors
______________________________________________________________________________ 
The Public Records Act requires that all forms of district-related business communications be 
made available to the public if requested. If directors use their personal cell phones to conduct 
district business, it could subject all communications, personal and business-related on that device 
to public records requests. Mr. Hayes, District Counsel, stated that it is best practice to use a 
separate district issued cell phone to conduct district business.  

ACTION TAKEN: 
MOTION: Director Sear made a motion to provide cell phones to directors and to pay for 

the costs associated with the district-issued devices. Secretary Coleman 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried by the following roll call vote:  

MINUTE ORDER NO.  2019-2949 

 AYES:  Canero, Coleman, Duran, Sear, Teague 
 NOES: None 
 ABSENT: None 
ABSTAIN: None 

b. Discuss Process for Transition to Election of Directors by Wards and Provide
Direction to Staff

______________________________________________________________________________ 
The California Voting Rights Act (CVRA) was enacted in 2001 to address disparities between 
ethnic demographics and elected officials. The CVRA prohibits special districts like VSD from using 
the “at-large” method of election that may impair the ability of a protected class from electing 
candidates of its choice or influencing the outcome of an election to their benefit. The City of Indio 
hired a consultant, the National Demographics Corporation, to determine if ward-based elections 
were warranted. The analysis identified key issues with regards to the Latino community and its 
representation within the City. Based on that analysis, and subsequent public input, the City 
adopted an ordinance in 2017 to move to district-based elections. To date, over 300 cities and 
special districts have changed to district-based elections. Typically, plaintiffs send a written notice 
(demand letter) before filing a lawsuit. There is a 45-day waiting period in which the receiving 
agency must adopt a resolution rather than going to court. If the agency chooses to go to court, 
there is a high likelihood that the plaintiffs would prevail and would have to pay the plaintiffs legal 
fees up to $30,000. Rather than waiting to receive such a complaint, staff recommends that VSD 
voluntarily convert to ward-based elections. If initiated immediately, VSD could complete the 
process, including adopting the map and wards, for the November 2020 general election. It was 
the consensus of the Board to move forward with the conversion of the ward-based elections. Ms. 
Marshall stated that she will work with counsel to prepare a resolution that she will bring back 
before the board. 

c. Adopt the Second Monday of October as Indigenous People’s Day as an Officially
Recognized Valley Sanitary District Holiday

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Ms. Marshall explained that the District observes 10 holidays compared to 11 observed by other 
comparable agencies in the area. In addition to the observed holidays, other comparable agencies 
in the area provide an average of two floating holidays, which the District does not offer. By adding 
this one additional holiday, VSD is competitive with other agencies in the area with regards to 



______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Board Minutes October 8, 2019                                                    4                                         Approved:  

employee benefits. President Duran asked for clarification as to what happened to the floating 
holiday that the Board previously approved. She explained that when the PTO (Paid Time Off) got 
absorbed into the vacation accrual one day was lost. President Duran requested that Ms. Marshall 
send him more information on the holiday. Director Canero requested to see a listing of all the 
District’s holidays. Secretary Coleman was in approval of adding Indigenous People’s Day as an 
officially recognized District holiday. No motion was made at this time and it was decided that more 
information be brought back before the board at a future meeting. 

d. Authorize the General Manager to Execute a Contract with Engineering Solutions
Services, Inc. for As-Needed Grant Assistance Support Services in an Amount Not to
Exceed $50,000 for Fiscal Year 2019/20

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Valley Sanitary District has several projects identified in its 20-year Capital Improvement Plan that 
may qualify for grants, loans, or other funding opportunities. Most of these opportunities have 
lengthy and time-consuming application processes and VSD staff does not have the experience 
with these grants and funding agencies that outside consultants can provide. Engineering 
Solutions Services, Inc. (ESS) has had significant success assisting Coachella Valley water and 
wastewater agencies in applying for grants, loans, and special funding opportunities. They have 
professional and technical experts that have significant experience with the non-profit, state, and 
other agencies providing these opportunities and high returns on the applications. Staff asked ESS 
to provide a quote for as-needed grant assistance to work with VSD on projects that it thinks best 
suit the available funding opportunities. Ms. Marshall explained that there are grant monies 
available now through Proposition 1A and Proposition 68 that would benefit the District for Plant 
Upgrades 2B and 2C. Director Canero asked if we went out to bid for this. Ms. Marshall stated that 
since the firm has done so much work with similar agencies in the area she did not. President 
Duran and Director Canero stated that this should wait until after the Strategic Planning is 
complete. Director Coleman stated that he likes that this firm is familiar with both state and federal 
levels. President Duran requested that the firm come make a presentation to the Board. No motion 
was made at this time. President Duran requested that this item come back before the board at a 
later date. 

e. Request Permission to Allow Volunteer Apiary on Valley Sanitary District Property to
Support Local Bee Population and Harvest “#2 Gold” Honey as an Environmental
Demonstration Project

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Ms. Marshall asked the permission of the board to set up a volunteer apiary on district property. 
She proposed an area not accessible to the public that would house not more than 10 boxes as a 
way to promote urban beekeeping. The “#2 Gold” honey collected from the hives would be used for 
demonstration purposes. Director Canero asked if Ms. Marshall checked into the liabilities of 
having an apiary on district property. President Duran requested that Ms. Marshall check with 
CSRMA and counsel on what is the liability for this type of project and bring it back before the 
board with more information.  

5. DIRECTOR’S ITEMS
Director’s items not listed are for discussion only; no action will be taken without an urgency vote
pursuant to State law.

Director Canero requested staff to look into death benefits for employees.  President Duran 
requested for staff to investigate options for the $1,500 dental and vision reimbursement benefit for 



______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Board Minutes October 8, 2019                                                    5                                         Approved:  

directors. Secretary Coleman informed the board of Indio’s Annual State of the City on October 31, 
2019 and asked permission for board members to attend.  

6. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 3:36 p.m. in memory of 
Jimmy Garcia’s brother, Oscar Garcia, and in recognition of California Water Professionals 
Appreciation Week. The next board meeting will be a Regular Meeting held October 22, 2019. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Holly Gould, Clerk of the Board 
Valley Sanitary District 



Item 3b

Back to Home





Item 3c

Back to Home



1 

Valley Sanitary District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

October 22, 2019 

TO: Board of Directors 

THROUGH: Beverli A. Marshall, General Manager 

FROM: Ronald Buchwald, District Engineer 

SUBJECT: Adopt a Resolution Establishing Designation of Valley Sanitary 
District’s Authorized Agents – CalOES Form 130 

☒ Board Action ☐ New expenditure request ☐ Contract Award
☐ Board Information ☐ Existing FY Approved

Budget
☐ Closed Session

Executive Summary 
The purpose of this report is for the Board of Directors to review and discuss the 
CalOES Form 130 Resolution and District’s Authorized Agents. 

Fiscal Impact 
This Resolution is necessary for the District to recover approximately $231,163 of the 
cost for the emergency work. 

Background 
Staff has applied for FEMA federal funding assistance for the emergency work 
performed on the sewer siphon crossing the Coachella Stormwater Channel at 
Westward Ho caused by the flooding event on February 14, 2019. The District has 
received approval of the federal funding assistance from CalOES (the CA State agency 
in charge of FEMA reimbursements) for the emergency work performed to temporary 
by-pass and repair the sewer siphon.  

In order to receive reimbursement for this emergency work, there are three CalOES 
forms that need to be completed and returned to CalOES. One of the forms, CalOES 
form 130 (Attachment A) is a resolution establishing the designation of Valley Sanitary 
District’s authorized agents that needs to be adopted by the Board of Directors and 
certified by the Clerk of the Board. 

The total cost to perform the work by VSD was $241,739.13. FEMA is reimbursing 75% 
of the total cost or $181,304.35. CalOES is covering 75% of the remaining 25% plus 
administrative allowance or $49,859. The total reimbursed cost is $231,163, which is 
approximately 95% of the total cost.   

Item 3d

Back to Home



2 

Recommendation 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt CalOES Resolution Form 130 
establishing the General Manager, District Engineer, and Administration & Finance 
Manager be authorized agents for the reimbursement of funds for the sewer siphon 
repair at Westward Ho. 

Attachments 
Attachment A: CalOES Resolution No. 130 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA     
GOVERNOR’S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES    Cal OES ID No: ______________________ 
Cal OES 130 

DESIGNATION OF APPLICANT'S AGENT RESOLUTION 
FOR NON-STATE AGENCIES 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE  OF THE 
 (Governing Body)            (Name of Applicant) 

THAT , OR 
(Title of Authorized Agent) 

, OR 
(Title of Authorized Agent) 

(Title of Authorized Agent) 

is hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf of the   , a public entity 
  (Name of Applicant) 

established under the laws of the State of California, this application and to file it with the California Governor’s Office of Emergency 
Services for the purpose of obtaining certain federal financial assistance under Public Law 93-288 as amended by the Robert T. Stafford 
Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act of 1988, and/or state financial assistance under the California Disaster Assistance Act. 

THAT the ________________________________________________, a public entity established under the laws of the State of California, 
        (Name of Applicant) 

hereby authorizes its agent(s) to provide to the Governor’s Office of Emergency Services for all matters pertaining to such state disaster 
assistance the assurances and agreements required. 

Please check the appropriate box below: 

This is a universal resolution and is effective for all open and future disasters up to three (3) years following the date of approval below. 

This is a disaster specific resolution and is effective for only disaster number(s) ________________________ 

Passed and approved this  day of , 20 

(Name and Title of Governing Body Representative) 

(Name and Title of Governing Body Representative) 

(Name and Title of Governing Body Representative) 

CERTIFICATION 

I,  , duly appointed and    of 
 (Name) (Title) 

, do hereby certify that the above is a true and correct copy of a 
(Name of Applicant) 

Resolution passed and approved by the of the 
 (Governing Body) (Name of Applicant) 

on the   day of   , 20  . 

  (Signature)   (Title) 

Cal OES 130 (Rev.9/13)       Page 1 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
GOVERNOR’S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 
Cal OES 130 - Instructions 

Cal OES Form 130 Instructions 

A Designation of Applicant’s Agent Resolution for Non-State Agencies is required of all Applicants to be eligible to 
receive funding.  A new resolution must be submitted if a previously submitted Resolution is older than three (3) years 
from the last date of approval, is invalid or has not been submitted.   

When completing the Cal OES Form 130, Applicants should fill in the blanks on page 1.  The blanks are to be filled in as 
follows: 

Resolution Section: 

Governing Body:  This is the group responsible for appointing and approving the Authorized Agents.  
Examples include:  Board of Directors, City Council, Board of Supervisors, Board of Education, etc. 

Name of Applicant:  The public entity established under the laws of the State of California.   Examples include:  School 
District, Office of Education, City, County or Non-profit agency that has applied for the grant, such as:  City of San Diego,  
Sacramento County, Burbank Unified School District, Napa County Office of Education, University Southern California. 

Authorized Agent:  These are the individuals that are authorized by the Governing Body to engage with the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency and the Governor’s Office of Emergency Services regarding grants applied for by the Applicant. There are 
two ways of completing this section: 

1.  Titles Only:  If the Governing Body so chooses, the titles of the Authorized Agents would be entered here, not
their names. This allows the document to remain valid (for 3 years) if an Authorized Agent leaves the position
and is replaced by another individual in the same title.  If “Titles Only” is the chosen method, this document
must be accompanied by a cover letter naming the Authorized Agents by name and title. This cover letter can
be completed by any authorized person within the agency and does not require the Governing Body’s signature.

2.  Names and Titles:  If the Governing Body so chooses, the names and titles of the Authorized Agents would be
listed. A new Cal OES Form 130 will be required if any of the Authorized Agents are replaced, leave the position
listed on the document or their title changes.

Governing Body Representative:  These are the names and titles of the approving Board Members. 
Examples include:  Chairman of the Board, Director, Superintendent, etc.  The names and titles cannot be one of the 
designated Authorized Agents, and a minimum of two or more approving board members need to be listed. 

Certification Section: 

Name and Title: This is the individual that was in attendance and recorded the Resolution creation and approval.  
Examples include:  City Clerk, Secretary to the Board of Directors, County Clerk, etc. This person cannot be one of the 
designated Authorized Agents or Approving Board Member (if a person holds two positions such as City Manager and 
Secretary to the Board and the City Manager is to be listed as an Authorized Agent, then the same person holding the 
Secretary position would sign the document as Secretary to the Board (not City Manager) to eliminate “Self 
Certification.”  

Cal OES 130 (Rev.9/13)       Page 2 



Valley Sanitary District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

October 22, 2019 

TO: Board of Directors 

THROUGH: Beverli A. Marshall, General Manager 

FROM: Joanne Padgham, Administration & Finance Manager 

SUBJECT: Designate Identified Items as Surplus Equipment and Authorize 
Disposition as Appropriate 

☒Board Action ☐New Budget Approval ☐Contract Award
☐Board Information ☐Existing FY Approved Budget ☐Closed Session

Executive Summary 
The purpose of this report is for the Board of Directors to review the list of surplus items. 

Fiscal Impact 
The 2000 Ford F750 dump truck and 1994 Ford F350 flatbed truck are in the process of 
being replaced.  As soon as the new assets are received the dump truck and flatbed 
truck will be sold at auction through GovDeals. Any revenue generated from the 
disposition of these assets will offset the cost of the replacement items. 

Background 
Staff has identified obsolete equipment that is no longer usable by the District. These 
items will be replaced by newer items and are no longer needed. 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors designate identified items are surplus 
equipment and authorize disposition as appropriate. 

Attachments 
Attachment A: Valley Sanitary District Equipment Disposition Form 

Item 3e

Back to Home



VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 
EQUIPMENT DISPOSITION FORM 

(This form is to be completed upon the disposition of fixed assets, including equipment for surplus) 

Date of Disposition:  10–22-2019 

Department: Administration/ Operations Location: VSD 

Justification for Disposition:  Obsolete/No longer usable by the District 
These items are for disposal/scrap or to be sold through GovDeals 

Item 
# 

Asset Tag 
# Quantity                Description 

Current         
Location

Value $ 

1 1 2000 Ford F750 Dump Truck VSD $4500 -
$7500 

GovDeals 

2 1 1994 Ford F350 Flatbed Truck VSD $2500 -
$6000 

GovDeals 

3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
10 

Check One:
_____Sold (Please attach supporting documentation and sale value.) 
_____Lost (Please include complete description of circumstances surrounding loss.) 
_____Donated to outside organization (Please attach supporting documentation.) 
_____Traded In (Please attach supporting documentation.) 
_____Reassigned for use as source of parts 
_____Stolen (Please attach police report or complete description of circumstances.) 
_____Destroyed (Please include complete description of circumstances.) 
__X_ Declared Surplus (Please attach documentation of Board Action) 
_____Other, Please explain: 

Department Supervisor:  General Manager: 
District Board Action:   



Valley Sanitary District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

October 22, 2019 

TO: Board of Directors 

THROUGH: Beverli A. Marshall, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Cancel Board Meeting Scheduled for Tuesday, November 26, 2019 
Due to the Proximity to the Thanksgiving Holiday 

☒ Board Action ☐ New Budget Approval ☐ Contract Award
☐ Board Information ☐ Existing FY Approved Budget ☐ Closed Session

Executive Summary 
The purpose of this report is for the Board to authorize the cancellation of this regularly 
scheduled meeting. 

Fiscal Impact 
There is a small savings for cancelling this meeting. 

Background 
The regular board meetings are scheduled for the second and fourth Tuesday of every 
month at 1:00 P.M. In November, the fourth Tuesday is two days before the 
Thanksgiving holiday. Many staff and directors travel out of the area for this holiday. By 
cancelling the meeting, the allows everyone the opportunity to take full advantage of the 
holiday week to prepare for or travel this holiday. 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors cancel the Regular Board Meeting 
scheduled for November 26, 2019, due to its proximity to the Thanksgiving holiday. 

Attachments 
None 

Item 3f

Back to Home



Valley Sanitary District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

October 22, 2019 

TO: Board of Directors 

THRU: Beverli A. Marshall, General Manager 

FROM: Ryan Williams, Maintenance Supervisor 

SUBJECT: Purchase Authorization Approval – Ford F750 Dump Truck from 
Fiesta Ford 

☒ Board Action ☐ New expenditure request ☐ Contract Award
☐ Board Information ☒ Existing FY Approved Budget ☐ Closed Session

Executive Summary 
The purpose of this report is for the Board to discuss purchasing the necessary 
equipment for sludge processing. 

Fiscal Impact 
Funds to purchase the Ford F-750 Dump Truck is included in the adopted FY 2019/20 
Budget. 

Background 
Staff has identified one (1) truck that needs to be replaced due to age, mileage and 
overall service cost. The dump truck is a needed asset in the sludge drying process at 
the District.  

The 2000 Ford F750 will be sold through GovDeals.  The estimated surplus value is 
$4,500 to $7,500. 

Procurement is with Government concession pricing. 

Recommendation 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to 
purchase one (1) F750 Dump Truck in the amount of $ 92,844.65. This price includes 
taxes.  

Attachments  
Attachment A: Quotes from Fiesta Ford 

Item 4a

Back to Home





Valley Sanitary District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

October 22, 2019 

TO: Board of Directors 

THRU: Beverli A. Marshall, General Manager 

FROM: Ryan Williams, Maintenance Supervisor 

SUBJECT: Purchase Authorization Approval – Ford F450 Flatbed with Tiltbed 
from Fiesta Ford 

☒ Board Action ☐ New expenditure request ☐ Contract Award
☐ Board Information ☒ Existing FY Approved Budget ☐ Closed Session

Executive Summary 
The purpose of this report is for the Board to discuss purchasing the necessary 
equipment for the District to transport large and oversized equipment to and from job 
sites. 

Fiscal Impact 
Funds to purchase the Ford F-450 Flatbed Truck with tiltbed is included in the adopted 
FY 2019/20 Budget. 

Background 
Staff has identified one (1) truck that needs to be replaced due to age, mileage and 
overall service cost.The flatbed truck with tiltbed is used by multiple departments within 
the District. The flatbed truck is used and equipped for both transporting large oversized 
equipment and towing necessary equipment to and from the job site. The flatbed truck’s 
lightbar satisfies the City of Indio Traffic Control Standards within the District’s service 
area.   

The 1994 Ford F350 will be sold through GovDeals.  The estimated surplus value is 
$2,500 to $6,000. 

Procurement is with Government concession pricing. 

Recommendation 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to 
purchase one (1) F450 Flatbed Truck with tiltbed in the amount of $ 61,672.21. This 
price includes the lightbar and taxes.  

Attachments  
Attachment A: Quotes from Fiesta Ford 

Item 4b

Back to Home







Valley Sanitary District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

October 22, 2019 

TO: Board of Directors 

THROUGH: Beverli A. Marshall, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Adopt Resolution of Intent to Convert from At-Large to By-Ward 
Election System 

☒ Board Action ☒ New Budget Approval ☐ Contract Award
☐ Board Information ☐ Existing FY Approved Budget ☐ Closed Session

Executive Summary 
The purpose of this report is for the Board to consider approval of a Resolution of Intent 
to change the District's election system from at-large, where the entire District votes for 
all Board members, to a by-ward system where only registered voters within a particular 
division vote for a potential Board member from their division. 

Fiscal Impact 
The fiscal impact is approximately $25,000, which will be offset from budget savings in 
other areas. 

Background 
The California Voting Rights Act (CVRA) was enacted in 2001 to address disparities 
between ethnic demographics and elected officials. The CVRA prohibits special districts 
like VSD from using the “at-large” method of election that may impair the ability of a 
protected class from electing candidates of its choice or influencing the outcome of an 
election to their benefit. In other words, without ward-based elections, their voice might 
be diluted by the combined total of all voters. 

To date, over 300 cities and special districts have changed to district-based elections. 
AB 350 established the steps to transition to proceed. Adoption of a resolution indicating 
the District’s intent to move At-Large to By-Ward elections is the first official step in the 
process. The draft timeline for the process, with a target of the 2020 General Election, is 
as follows. 

December 17, 2019 Public Hearing to Discuss Map Criteria #1 
January 14, 2020 Public Hearing to Discuss Map Criteria #2 
March 10, 2020 Public Hearing to Discuss Draft Maps #1 
April 21, 2020 Public Hearing to Discuss Draft Maps #2 
May 12, 2020 Board Adopts Map Establishing Wards 

Item 4c

Back to Home



During the third and fourth public hearings, the Board of Directors will also need to 
determine the "sequencing" of the elections. This means that the Board will need to 
decide which wards will first have elections. There is not a legal requirement that where 
incumbents reside is how the elections should be sequenced. In fact, recent legislative 
amendments set forth in AB 350 (Elections Code section I 00 I O(b)) state that special 
consideration should be given to the CVRA's purposes in determining which wards are 
to have the first elections. 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors adopt Resolution 2019-1124 indicating 
the District’s intent to convert from At-Large to By-Ward election system. 

Attachments 
Attachment A: Resolution 2019-1124 Intent to Move to Election by Wards 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-1124 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE VALLEY SANITARY 
DISTRICT DECLARING ITS INTENTION TO TRANSITION FROM AT-LARGE TO BY-
WARD ELECTIONS AND SETTING FORTH THE PROCESS FOR TRANSITIONING 

TO BY-WARD ELECTIONS 

WHEREAS, Board members of the Valley Sanitary District (“District”) are 
currently elected by at-large elections, as each member is elected through a District-
wide vote; and  

WHEREAS, the California Voting Rights Act (“CVRA”) became law in 2003 and 
provides a means for prospective plaintiffs to allege racially polarized voting and to seek 
a change from a jurisdiction’s at large election system to a different system, typically a 
by-district or by-division election system where only registered voters within a specific 
division may vote for a candidate running from their specific division, and also allows for 
the recovery of a plaintiff’s attorneys’ fees; and  

WHEREAS, a violation of the CVRA may be established if it is shown that racially 
polarized voting has combined with an at-large voting system to impair the ability of a 
protected class of voters to elect candidates of its choice or to influence the outcome of 
an election; and  

WHEREAS, “racially polarized voting” under the CVRA means voting in which 
there is a difference between the choice of candidates or other electoral choices that 
are preferred by voters in a protected class and in the choice of candidates and 
electoral choices preferred by voters in the rest of the electorate; and  

WHEREAS, has not received a notice from a resident of the District, or an 
attorney representing a resident, asserting that the District’s at-large election system 
may violate the CVRA; and  

WHEREAS, the District does not believe that its election system violates the 
CVRA or any other similar law; and  

WHEREAS, the District Board has nevertheless determined due to the high cost 
of litigation, including the potential payment of plaintiff’s attorneys’ fees, that the public 
interest is better served by initiating a process for transition to a ward-based election 
system in order to avoid the costs associated with defending a lawsuit under the CVRA; 
and  

WHEREAS, the California Legislature has provided in Elections Code § 10010 a 
method whereby a jurisdiction may expeditiously transition to a district- or division-
based election system and avoid the high cost of litigation under the CVRA by its 
adoption of AB 350; and  



2 

WHEREAS, § 10010 will delay CVRA litigation and limit attorneys’ fees 
associated with a CVRA claim if, within 45 days of receipt of a claim under the CVRA, 
the District adopts a resolution stating its intent to transition to ward-based elections and 
within 90 days thereafter (or as otherwise stipulated by the parties), the District takes 
action to transition to a district-based election system consistent with the intent and 
purpose of the California Voting Rights Act; and  

WHEREAS, prior to the District’s consideration of a resolution to establish 
boundaries for a ward-based electoral system, the District is first required under 
Elections Code § 10010 to hold public hearings where the public may provide input on 
the composition of the divisions, then to draw proposed maps that must be published 
and available for the public to comment on during at least two public hearings, and to 
thereafter adopt a resolution with the new maps showing the divisions; and  

WHEREAS, the District Board now desires to declare its intention to adopt a 
resolution transitioning from an at-large to ward-based elections for its next election, 
establish specific steps it will undertake to facilitate this transition, and establish an 
estimated timeframe for doing so.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE VALLEY 
SANITARY DISTRICT HEREBY RESOLVES:  

Section 1.  Recitals 

That the recitals set forth above are true and correct.  

Section 2. Intent to Transition to District-Based Elections 

That the Board of Directors intends to consider adoption of a resolution, 
consistent with and Elections Code § 10010, to transition to a ward-based election 
system for use in the District’s next general election for its Board of Directors. 

Section 3. Upcoming Actions 

That the Board of Directors shall take, or shall cause District staff to take, the 
following actions, as close as possible to 90 days following the effective date of this 
Resolution, taking into consideration time required for public outreach and input, agenda 
requirements under the Brown Act, the Board of Directors’ meeting schedule, and the 
timeframes established under Elections Code § 10010:  

(a) Conduct public outreach, including to non-English speaking communities,
to explain the districting process and to encourage public participation; 

(b) Before drawing a draft map or maps of the proposed ward boundaries,
hold at least two public hearings at which the public is invited to provide input regarding 



3 

the composition of the divisions and to consider division boundaries as provided in 
Elections Code § 10010;  

(c) After drawing a draft map or maps, publish the draft map(s) and the
potential sequence of the ward elections and hold at least two public hearings at which 
the public is invited to provide input regarding the content of the draft map or maps and 
the proposed sequence of elections; and  

(d) Hold a public hearing at which the Board of Directors will consider and
adopt a resolution establishing ward elections, including the adoption of a ward 
boundary map and the sequence of the ward elections.  

Section 4. Severability 

That the Board of Directors declares that, should any provision, section, 
paragraph, sentence, or word of this Resolution be rendered or declared invalid by any 
final court action in a court of competent jurisdiction or by reason of any preemptive 
legislation, the remaining provisions, sections, paragraphs, sentences, or words of this 
Resolution as hereby adopted shall remain in full force and effect.  

Section 5. Repeal of Conflicting Provisions 

That all of the provisions heretofore adopted by the District or the Board of 
Directors that are in conflict with the provisions of this Resolution are hereby repealed. 

Section 6.  Effective Date 

That this Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption. 

Section 7. CEQA 

That a transition from at-large to ward-based elections is exempt from 
environmental review under the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) (Public 
Resources Code §§ 21000 et seq.) pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines (Cal. Code 
Regs., tit. 14 § 15000 et seq.) §§ 15061(b)(3), 15320, and 15378(b)(3). Adoption of this 
Resolution is an organizational and administrative activity of the District, does not have 
the potential to result in either a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical 
change in the environment, and is therefore not a project for purposes of CEQA. In the 
event adoption of this Resolution does constitute a project, it is categorically exempt 
under Class 20 (Changes in the Organization of Local Governments) categorical 
exemption.   

Section 8. Certification 

That the Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this Resolution. 



4 

Passed, approved, and adopted this 22nd day of October, 2019, by the following roll call 
vote: 

AYE: 
NAYE: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Mike Duran, President 

ATTEST: 

Dennis Coleman, Secretary 



1 

STAFF NOTES 
October 15, 2019 

ANNIVERSARIES 
• Holly Gould – 10 Years

ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE 
• Reviewing the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).  The

auditors will be presenting to the Board at the November 12, 2019 Board
meeting.

• Continuing to work with Caselle to upgrade permitting and accounting
software.

ENGINEERING & MAINTENANCE 
• Staff is looking into obtaining reimbursement from FEMA for the damage

caused by the February storm event which damaged the sewer siphon at
Westward Ho Drive. Staff has received forms to be completed and returned
and documents to be reviewed.  The temporary repair work looks to be
reimbursed by FEMA & CalOES in the next couple of months.

• Staff is working with Carollo Engineering on the preliminary design of a new
sewer siphon at Westward Ho Drive to avoid damage caused by future
storm events. Additional work is necessary to meet the permit conditions of
CVWD.  Carollo is gathering all required information to provide the
Preliminary Design Report by the end of January 2020.

• Staff is continuing to work with Harris and Associates on the Collections
System Rehabilitation and Maintenance project. Currently, Harris is devising
a methodology for determining which pipes within the collection system will
be candidates for rehabilitation or replacement and their order of
importance.  They are also working on putting together bid documents for
the CCTV inspection of sewer mains that need special requirements or
technology.

• Staff is working with Lucity on implementing an asset management system
for the treatment plant using Lucity Web software.  Staff has completed the
verification of assets and edits to the asset register. Carollo will review and
provide comments on VSD’s edits by Friday, October 17, 2019. The
installation of the new Lucity Web server was completed by Southwest
Networks and Lucity is scheduled to install the program on Monday October
21, 2019.

Item 4d

Back to Home



2 

• Field Vactor crew is currently working in the area of Market and Fleming.
• CCTV Inspection work is currently being conducted in the area of Miles and

Rubidoux.
OPERATIONS 

• Operations staff is pressure washing secondary clarifier #1 during the week
of October 14, 2019.  National Coating will be scheduled to repair the
delaminated coating on the clarifier as soon as possible.

• The new doors for the blower building are expected to arrive sometime
during the week of October 14, 2019.  Staff will be doing the installation as
soon as they arrive.

• Annual calibration of digester gas and natural gas flow meters associated
with the flare and boiler are being scheduled.

• Influent pump #4 VFD has been ordered.  Installation will be scheduled as
soon as parts come in.











Item 6a

Back to Home





Item 6b

Back to Home


	22 Oct 2019 Agenda
	Item 3a Minutes for Oct. 8, 2019
	Item 3b Check Register
	Item 3c Summary of Cash and Investments for Sept 2019
	Item 3d Staff Report Resolution for CalOES Reimbursement
	Item 3d Attachment A CalOES 130
	Item 3e Staff Report Authorize Surplus Equipment
	Item 3e Attachment A Surplus Equipment 10-22-2019
	Item 3f Staff Report Cancel November 26 Meeting
	Item 4a Staff Report Dump Truck
	Item 4a Attachment A Ford Dump Truck Price Sheet
	Item 4b Staff Report Ford F450  Flat Bed from Fiesta Ford
	Item 4b Attachment A Ford Flatbed Price Sheet
	Item 4b Attachment B Ford Flatbed Lighting
	Item 4c Staff Report Elections by Wards
	Item 4c Attachment A Resolution 2019-1124 Intent Transitioning to By Ward District Election
	Item 4d Staff Report 10-15-2019
	Item 4d Development Services Report
	Item 6a Combined Monthly Account Summary
	Item 6b Monthly Income Summary

	Cal OES ID No: 065-91096
	Governing Body: Board of Directors
	Name of Applicant: Valley Sanitary District
	Title of Authorized Agent: General Manager
	Title of Authorized Agent_2: District Engineer
	Title of Authorized Agent_3: Administration & Finance Manager
	Name of Applicant_2: Valley Sanitary District
	Name of Applicant_3: Valley Sanitary District
	This is a universal resolution and is effective for all open and future disasters up to three 3 years following the date of approval below: Off
	This is a disaster specific resolution and is effective for only disaster numbers: On
	undefined: 4431 DR-CA
	day of: 
	20: 
	undefined_2: 
	Name and Title of Governing Body Representative: 
	Name and Title of Governing Body Representative_2: 
	Name and Title of Governing Body Representative_3: 
	Name: Holly Gould
	Title: Clerk of the Board
	Name of Applicant_4: Valley Sanitary District
	Governing Body_2: Board of Directors
	Name of Applicant_5: Valley Sanitary District
	day of_2: 
	20_2: 
	Title_2: Clerk of the Board


